
 

 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

MEETING AGENDA 

WEDNESDAY, JULY 27, 2016 

Regular Meeting - 6:30 PM 

 
City Hall – Beryl P. Robinson, Jr. Conference Room 

317 Broad Street, Nevada City, CA  95959 
 

 

MISSION STATEMENT  

The City of Nevada City is dedicated to preserving and enhancing its small town  

character and historical architecture while providing quality public services for our 

 current and future residents, businesses and visitors. 

 
 

 Evans Phelps, Mayor 

Reinette Senum, Council Member   Duane Strawser, Vice Mayor 

David Parker, Council Member   Valerie Moberg, Council Member 
 

The City Council welcomes you to its meetings which are scheduled at 6:30 PM on the 2nd and 4th Wednesdays of 

each month.  Your interest is encouraged and appreciated.  This meeting is recorded on DVD and is televised on 

local public television Channel 17.  Other special accommodations may be requested to the City Clerk 72 hours in 

advance of the meeting.  Please turn off all cell phones or similar devices.  Action may be taken on any agenda item.  

Agenda notices are available at City Hall.  Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Council after 

distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the City Hall at 317 Broad Street, Nevada 

City, CA during normal business hours. 

 
ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC DESIRING TO ADDRESS THE COUNCIL ON ANY ITEM ON THIS 

AGENDA: After receiving recognition from the Mayor, give your name and address, and then your comments or 

questions. Please direct your remarks to the Councilmembers. In order that all interested parties have an opportunity 

to speak, please limit your comments to the specific item under discussion. All citizens will be afforded an 

opportunity to speak, consistent with their Constitutional rights. Time limits shall be at the Mayor's discretion. IF 

YOU CHALLENGE the Council's decision on any matter in court, you will be limited to raising only those issues 

you or someone else raised at the meeting or Public Hearing described on this agenda, or in written correspondence 

delivered to the City Council at, or prior to, the meeting or Public Hearing.   

 

 

REGULAR MEETING – 6:30 PM - Call to Order 

 

Roll Call:  Moberg, Parker, Senum, Vice Mayor Strawser, & Mayor Phelps 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
 

PROCLAMATION:   
 

PRESENTATION: Recognize Swimming Pool Staff – Parks & Recreation Supervisor Zydonis 

 

BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR 

 

1. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

Under Government Code Section 54954.3, members of the public are entitled to address 

the City Council concerning any item within the Nevada City Council’s subject matter 

 
 

1



 

 

jurisdiction. Comments on items NOT ON THE AGENDA are welcome at this time.  

Normally, public comments are limited to no more than three minutes each.  Except for 

certain specific exceptions, the City Council is prohibited from discussing or taking 

action on any item not appearing on the posted agenda. 

 

2. COUNCIL MEMBERS REQUESTED ITEMS AND COMMITTEE REPORTS: 

 

3. CONSENT ITEMS: 

 

All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are to be considered routine by the City Council 

and will be enacted by one motion in the form listed.  There will be no separate discussion of 

these items unless, before the City Council votes on the motion to adopt, members of the 

Council, City staff or the public request specific items to be removed from the Consent Calendar 

for separate discussion and action. 

 

A. Subject: Fire Activity Report – June 2016 

Recommendation: Receive and file. 

 

B. Subject: Amendment to the Joint Powers Agreement to add Nevada City as an 

associate member to permit participation in the California Home Energy Renovation 

Opportunity (HERO) program 

Recommendation: Approve and authorize the mayor to sign an Amendment to the 

Joint Powers Agreement adding City of Nevada City as an Associate Member of 

Western Riverside Council of Governments to Permit the Provision of Property 

Assessed Clean Energy (PACE) Program services within the City. 

 

C. Subject:  Land Use Covenant for Stiles Mill Property 

Recommendation:  Pass Resolution 2016-XX authorizing the Mayor to sign the 

Land Use Covenant and Agreement to Restrict Use of Property, Environmental 

Restrictions required by Department of Toxic Substances. 

 

D. Subject: Proposition 84, Integrated Regional Water Management (IRWM) 

Implementation Grant Agreement 4600009716 Amendment #2 

Recommendation: Review and authorize the Mayor to sign Proposition 84, 

Integrated Regional Water Management (IRWM) Implementation Grant Agreement 

4600009716 Amendment #2 

 

      4.  APPROVAL OF ACTION MINUTES: 

 

A. City Council Meeting – July 6, 2016 

B. Special City Council Meeting – July 13, 2016 

 

5. DEPARTMENT REQUESTED ACTION ITEMS AND UPDATE REPORTS: 

 

A. Subject: City of Nevada City Surplus Property Disposition Policy 

Recommendation:  Pass Resolution 2016-XX adopting the City of Nevada City 

Surplus Property Disposition Policy. 

 

 

 

2



 

 

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

 

A. Subject: Continuation of an Appeal of Planning Commission Decision to Deny the 

Architectural Review Application of Charlotte Dewar to Construct a Front Entry 

Façade on the Accessory Building located at 254 Boulder Street 

Recommendation: After holding a public hearing, Council shall make a decision 

whether to uphold, overturn or modify the Planning Commission decision to deny the 

Architectural Review Application. 

 

7. OLD BUSINESS: 

 

A. Subject: Update on Water Conservation Legislation and Projects 

Recommendation:  Receive and file. 

 

8. NEW BUSINESS: 

 

A. Subject:  Nevada City Sidewalk Cost-Sharing Program Pilot Project 

Recommendation:  Review and approve implementation of Nevada City Sidewalk 

Cost-Sharing Program Pilot Project. 

 

B. Subject: City Council Appointments for Fiscal Year 2016-2017 

Recommendation: Review and consider appointment of City Council Members to 

City and External Boards, Committees and Commissions for Fiscal Year 2016-2017. 

 

9. CORRESPONDENCE: 

 

10. ANNOUNCEMENTS: 

 

11. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT: 

 

12. ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

 

 

Certification of Posting of Agenda 

I, Corey Shaver, Administrative Supervisor for the City of Nevada City, declare that the foregoing agenda for the 

July 27, 2016 Regular Meeting of the Nevada City City Council was posted July 22, 2016 at the office of the City of 

Nevada City (City Hall). The agenda is also posted on the City’s website www.nevadacityca.gov. 

 

Signed this July 22, 2016 at Nevada City, California 

 

 

__________________________________, Corey Shaver, Administrative Supervisor 

 

 

 

 

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

CITY OF NEVADA CITY 

City Council 

Long Range Calendar 

 

3

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


 

 

 

August 10, 2016  Regular Council Meeting 

August 15, 2016  Special City Council Meeting – Governance Meeting 

August 24, 2016  Regular Council Meeting 

August 25, 2016  Special City Council and Planning Commission - Goal Setting Meeting 

September 14, 2016 Regular Council Meeting 

September 28, 2016 Regular Council Meeting 

 

 

 

 

NOTE:  This list is for planning purposes; items may shift depending on timing and capacity of a meeting. 

 

NOTICE:  As presiding officer, the Mayor has the authority to preserve order at all City Council meetings, to 

remove or cause the removal of any person from any such meeting for disorderly conduct, or for making personal, 

impertinent, or slanderous remarks, using profanity, or becoming boisterous, threatening or personally abusive 

while addressing said Council and to enforce the rules of the Council. 

4



  REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL 
         City of Nevada City 

         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA  95959 

July 26, 2016       www.nevadacityca.gov 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

TITLE:  Fire Activity Report – June 2016 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Receive and file. 
 
CONTACT:  Sam Goodspeed, Fire Chief 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION: The attached Fire Activity Report reviews the monthly 
responses including incident type, location and participation for Nevada City Fire Station 
54. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS:  Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not applicable. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 

 Station 54 Incident Responses 
 Nevada City Incident Responses 
 Station 54 Incident Type Summary 
 Year to Date Incident Participation 

 
 

5

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


6



7



8



9



10



11



12



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL  
 
 
July 27, 2016 

City of Nevada City 
317 Broad Street 
Nevada City, CA 95959 
www.nevadacityca.gov 

 

 

TITLE:  Amendment to the Joint Powers Agreement to add Nevada City as an 
associate member to permit participation in the California Home Energy Renovation 
Opportunity (HERO) program  

RECOMMENDATION: 

1. Approve and authorize the mayor to sign an Amendment to the Joint Powers 
Agreement adding City of Nevada City as an Associate Member of Western 
Riverside Council of Governments to Permit the Provision of Property Assessed 
Clean Energy (PACE) Program services within the City. 

CONTACT:  Amy Wolfson, City Planner 

BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  At the City Council Meeting held on May 25, 2016 
Council voted unanimously to adopt Resolution 2016-20 consenting to include properties 
within Nevada City’s jurisdiction in the Home Energy Renovation Opportunity (HERO) 
Program. This program allows for special financing opportunities for property owners who 
voluntarily participate in making energy and water efficiency improvements. Since adoption 
of this Resolution, staff has been advised that to make the approved HERO program 
available in the City, it is also necessary to formally approve an amendment to the JPA for 
the entity administering the HERO program adding Nevada City as an associate member. 

The May 25th video record along with the staff report are available on the City’s website. 
The discussion on the adoption of Resolution 2016-20 is between minutes 50:39 and 
1:17:38 of the video record.  

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS:  No negative fiscal impact to the City’s general fund will 
be incurred by amending the Joint Powers Agreement to include Nevada City as an 
Associate Member of the Western Riverside Council of Governments.  All California HERO 
Program administrative costs are covered through an initial administrative fee included in 
the property owner’s voluntary contractual assessment and an annual administrative fee 
which is also collected on the property owner’s tax bill.  

ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Joint Powers Agreement Expansion Amendment 

2. Exhibit A: Joint Powers Agreement of WRCOG 

 

13



A - 1 
20323.00016\8035530.3 

AMENDMENT TO THE JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT 
ADDING CITY OF NEVADA CITY AS 
AN ASSOCIATE MEMBER OF THE 

WESTERN RIVERSIDE COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS  
TO PERMIT THE PROVISION OF PROPERTY ASSESSED CLEAN 

ENERGY (PACE) PROGRAM SERVICES WITHIN SUCH CITY 

This Amendment to the Joint Powers Agreement (“JPA Amendment”) is made and 
entered into on the  ___day of _____, 2016, by City of Nevada City (“City”) and the 
Western Riverside Council of Governments (“Authority”) (collectively the “Parties”). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, Authority is a joint exercise of powers authority established pursuant to 
Chapter 5 of Division 7, Title 1 of the Government Code of the State of California (Section 
6500 and following) (the “Joint Exercise of Powers Act”) and the Joint Power Agreement 
entered into on April 1, 1991, as amended from time to time (the “Authority JPA”); and 

WHEREAS, as of October 1, 2012, Authority had 18 member entities (the “Regular 
Members”). 

WHEREAS, Chapter 29 of the Improvement Act of 1911, being Division 7 of the California 
Streets and Highways Code (“Chapter 29”) authorizes cities, counties, and cities and 
counties to establish voluntary contractual assessment programs, commonly referred to 
as a Property Assessed Clean Energy (“PACE”) program, to fund certain renewable 
energy sources, energy and water efficiency improvements, and electric vehicle charging 
infrastructure (the “Improvements”) that are permanently fixed to residential, commercial, 
industrial, agricultural or other real property; and 

WHEREAS, Authority has established a PACE program designated as the “California 
HERO Program” pursuant to Chapter 29 which authorizes the implementation of such 
PACE financing program for cities and counties throughout the state; and 

WHEREAS, City desires to allow owners of property within its jurisdiction to participate in 
the California HERO Program and to allow Authority under Chapter 29, as it is now 
enacted or may be amended hereafter, to finance Improvements to be installed on such 
properties; and 

WHEREAS, this JPA Amendment will permit City to become an Associate Member of 
Authority and to participate in California HERO Program for the purpose of facilitating the 
implementation of such program within the jurisdiction of City; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Joint Exercise of Powers Act, the Parties are approving this 
JPA Agreement to allow for the provision of PACE services through the California HERO 
Program, including the operation of such PACE financing program, within the 
incorporated territory of City; and  

Attachment 1.1

14



A - 2 
20323.00016\8035530.3 

WHEREAS, the JPA Amendment sets forth the rights, obligations and duties of City and 
Authority with respect to the implementation of the California HERO Program within the 
incorporated territory of City. 

MUTUAL UNDERSTANDINGS 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions 
hereinafter stated, the Parties hereto agree as follows: 

A. JPA Amendment.

1. The Authority JPA.  City agrees to the terms and conditions of the Authority
JPA, attached. 

2. Associate Membership.  By adoption of this JPA Amendment, City shall
become an Associate Member of Authority on the terms and conditions set forth herein 
and the Authority JPA and consistent with the requirements of the Joint Exercise of 
Powers Act.  The rights and obligations of City as an Associate Member are limited solely 
to those terms and conditions expressly set forth in this JPA Amendment for the purposes 
of implementing the California HERO Program within the incorporated territory of City.  
Except as expressly provided for by the this JPA Amendment, City shall not have any 
rights otherwise granted to Authority’s Regular Members by the Authority JPA, including 
but not limited to the right to vote on matters before the Executive Committee or the 
General Assembly, the right to amend or vote on amendments to the Authority JPA, and 
the right to sit on committees or boards established under the Authority JPA or by action 
of the Executive Committee or the General Assembly, including, without limitation, the 
General Assembly and the Executive Committee.  City shall not be considered a member 
for purposes of Section 9.1 of the Authority JPA. 

3. Rights of Authority.  This JPA Amendment shall not be interpreted as
limiting or restricting the rights of Authority under the Authority JPA.  Nothing in this JPA 
Amendment is intended to alter or modify Authority Transportation Uniform Mitigation Fee 
(TUMF) Program, the PACE Program administered by Authority within the jurisdictions of 
its Regular Members, or any other programs administered now or in the future by 
Authority, all as currently structured or subsequently amended. 

B. Implementation of California HERO Program within City Jurisdiction.

1. Boundaries of the California HERO Program within City Jurisdiction.  The
boundaries within which contractual assessments may be entered into under the 
California HERO Program (the “Program Boundaries”) shall include the entire 
incorporated territory of City.   

2. Determination of Eligible Improvements.  Authority shall determine the
types of distributed generation renewable energy sources, energy efficiency or water 
conservation improvements, electric vehicle charging infrastructure or such other 
improvements as may be authorized pursuant to Chapter 29 (the “Eligible Improvements”) 
that will be eligible to be financed under the California HERO Program. 

Attachment 1.2

15



A - 3 
20323.00016\8035530.3 

3. Implementation of California HERO Program Within the Program
Boundaries.  Authority will undertake such proceedings pursuant to Chapter 29 as shall 
be legally necessary to enable Authority to make contractual financing of Eligible 
Improvements available to eligible property owners within the Program Boundaries. 

4. Financing the Installation of Eligible Improvements.  Authority shall 
implement its plan for the financing of the purchase and installation of the Eligible 
Improvements under the California HERO Program within the Program Boundaries. 

5. Ongoing Administration.  Authority shall be responsible for the ongoing
administration of the California HERO Program, including but not limited to producing 
education plans to raise public awareness of the California HERO Program, soliciting, 
reviewing and approving applications from residential and commercial property owners 
participating in the California HERO Program, establishing contracts for residential, 
commercial and other property owners participating in such program, levying and 
collecting assessments due under the California HERO Program, taking any required 
remedial action in the case of delinquencies in such assessment payments, adopting and 
implementing any rules or regulations for the California HERO Program, and providing 
reports as required by Chapter 29. 

City will not be responsible for the conduct of any proceedings required to be taken under 
Chapter 29; the levy or collection of assessments or any required remedial action in the 
case of delinquencies in such assessment payments; or the issuance, sale or 
administration of any bonds issued in connection with the California HERO Program. 

6. Phased Implementation.  The Parties recognize and agree that 
implementation of the California HERO Program as a whole can and may be phased as 
additional other cities and counties execute similar agreements.  City entering into this 
JPA Amendment will obtain the benefits of and incur the obligations imposed by this JPA 
Amendment in its jurisdictional area, irrespective of whether cities or counties enter into 
similar agreements. 

C. Miscellaneous Provisions.

1. Withdrawal.  Authority may withdraw from this JPA Amendment upon six (6)
months written notice to the other party; provided, however, there is no outstanding 
indebtedness of Authority within City.  The provisions of Section 6.2 of the Authority JPA 
shall not apply to City under this JPA Amendment.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, City 
may withdraw, either temporarily or permanently, from its participation in the California 
HERO Program or either the residential or commercial component of the California HERO 
Program upon thirty (30) written notice to WRCOG without liability to the Authority or any 
affiliated entity.  City withdrawal from such participation shall not affect the validity of any 
voluntary assessment contracts (a) entered prior to the date of such withdrawal or (b) 
entered into after the date of such withdrawal so long as the applications for such 
voluntary assessment contracts were submitted to and approved by WRCOG prior to the 
date of City’s notice of withdrawal. 

Attachment 1.3

16



A - 4 
20323.00016\8035530.3 

2. Mutual Indemnification and Liability.  Authority and City shall mutually
defend, indemnify and hold the other party and its directors, officials, officers, employees 
and agents free and harmless from any and all claims, demands, causes of action, costs, 
expenses, liabilities, losses, damages or injuries of any kind, in law or equity, to property 
or persons, including wrongful death, to the extent arising out of the willful misconduct or 
negligent acts, errors or omissions of the indemnifying party or its directors, officials, 
officers, employees and agents in connection with the California HERO Program 
administered under this JPA Amendment, including without limitation the payment of 
expert witness fees and attorneys’ fees and other related costs and expenses, but 
excluding payment of consequential damages.  Without limiting the foregoing, Section 5.2 
of the Authority JPA shall not apply to this JPA Amendment.  In no event shall any of 
Authority’s Regular Members or their officials, officers or employees be held directly liable 
for any damages or liability resulting out of this JPA Amendment. 

3. Environmental Review.  Authority shall be the lead agency under the
California Environmental Quality Act for any environmental review that may be required 
in implementing or administering the California HERO Program under this JPA 
Amendment. 

4. Cooperative Effort.  City shall cooperate with Authority by providing
information and other assistance in order for Authority to meet its obligations hereunder.  
City recognizes that one of its responsibilities related to the California HERO Program will 
include any permitting or inspection requirements as established by City. 

5. Notice.  Any and all communications and/or notices in connection with this
JPA Amendment shall be either hand-delivered or sent by United States first class mail, 
postage prepaid, and addressed as follows: 

Authority: 

Western Riverside Council of Governments 
4080 Lemon Street, 3rd Floor. MS1032 
Riverside, CA 92501-3609 
Att:  Executive Director 

City: 

City of Nevada City 
317 Broad Street 
Nevada City, CA 95959 
Att: City Manager 

6. Entire Agreement.  This JPA Amendment, together with the Authority JPA,
constitutes the entire agreement among the Parties pertaining to the subject matter 
hereof.  This JPA Amendment supersedes any and all other agreements, either oral or in 
writing, among the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and contains all of 

Attachment 1.4

17



A - 5 
20323.00016\8035530.3 

the covenants and agreements among them with respect to said matters, and each Party 
acknowledges that no representation, inducement, promise of agreement, oral or 
otherwise, has been made by the other Party or anyone acting on behalf of the other 
Party that is not embodied herein. 

7. Successors and Assigns.  This JPA Amendment and each of its covenants
and conditions shall be binding on and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties and their 
respective successors and assigns.  A Party may only assign or transfer its rights and 
obligations under this JPA Amendment with prior written approval of the other Party, 
which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

8. Attorney’s Fees.  If any action at law or equity, including any action for
declaratory relief is brought to enforce or interpret the provisions of this Agreement, each 
Party to the litigation shall bear its own attorney’s fees and costs. 

9. Governing Law.  This JPA Amendment shall be governed by and construed
in accordance with the laws of the State of California, as applicable. 

10. No Third Party Beneficiaries.  This JPA Amendment shall not create any
right or interest in the public, or any member thereof, as a third party beneficiary hereof, 
nor shall it authorize anyone not a Party to this JPA Amendment to maintain a suit for 
personal injuries or property damages under the provisions of this JPA Amendment.  The 
duties, obligations, and responsibilities of the Parties to this JPA Amendment with respect 
to third party beneficiaries shall remain as imposed under existing state and federal law. 

11. Severability.  In the event one or more of the provisions contained in this
JPA Amendment is held invalid, illegal or unenforceable by any court of competent 
jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed severed from this JPA Amendment and the 
remaining parts of this JPA Amendment shall remain in full force and effect as though 
such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable portion had never been a part of this JPA 
Amendment. 

12. Headings.  The paragraph headings used in this JPA Amendment are for
the convenience of the Parties and are not intended to be used as an aid to interpretation. 

13. Amendment.  This JPA Amendment may be modified or amended by the
Parties at any time.  Such modifications or amendments must be mutually agreed upon 
and executed in writing by both Parties.  Verbal modifications or amendments to this JPA 
Amendment shall be of no effect. 

14. Effective Date.  This JPA Amendment shall become effective upon the
execution thereof by the Parties hereto. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this JPA Amendment to be 
executed and attested by their officers thereunto duly authorized as of the date first above 
written.  

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGES] 

Attachment 1.5

18



A - 6 
20323.00016\8035530.3 

WESTERN RIVERSIDE COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

By: Date: 
Name:  
Title: 

CITY OF NEVADA CITY 

By: Date: 
Name:  
Title:  
20323.00016\19858779.1 

Attachment 1.6

19



Updated through June 4, 2013 
Revised 

JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT OF 

THE WESTERN RIVERSIDE 

COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

This Agreement is made and entered into on the 1st day of April, 1991, pursuant 

to Government Code Section 6500 et. seq. and other pertinent provisions of law, by and 

between six or more of the cities located within Western Riverside County and the 

County of Riverside. 

R E C I T A L S 

A. Each member and party to this Agreement is a governmental entity

established by law with full powers of government in legislative, administrative, financial, 

and other related fields. 

B. The purpose of the formation is to provide an agency to conduct studies

and projects designed to improve and coordinate the common governmental 

responsibilities and services on an area-wide and regional basis through the 

establishment of an association of governments.  The Council will explore areas of inter-

governmental cooperation and coordination of government programs and provide 

recommendations and solutions to problems of common and general concern. 

C. When authorized pursuant to an Implementation Agreement, the Council

shall manage and administer thereunder. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants 

herein contained, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

20323.00002\1494125.6

Exhibit A

Attachment 2.1

20



I. 

PURPOSE AND POWERS 

1.1 Agency Created. 

There is hereby created a public entity to be known as the "Western 

Riverside Council of Governments" ("WRCOG").  WRCOG is formed by this Agreement 

pursuant to the provision of Government Code Section 6500 et.  seq.  and other 

pertinent provision of law.  WRCOG shall be a public entity separate from the parties 

hereto. 

1.2 Powers. 

1.2.1. WRCOG established hereunder shall perform all necessary 

functions to fulfill the purposes of this Agreement.  Among other functions, WRCOG 

shall: 

a. Serve as a forum for consideration, study and recommendation on

area-wide and regional problems; 

b. Assemble information helpful in the consideration of problems

peculiar to Western Riverside County; 

c. Explore practical avenues for intergovernmental cooperation,

coordination and action in the interest of local public welfare and means of 

improvements in the administration of governmental services; and 

d. Serve as the clearinghouse review body for Federally-funded

projects in accordance with Circular A-95 in conjunction with the Southern California 

Association of Governments. 

20323.00002\1494125.6 2

Attachment 2.2

21



1.2.2. The Council shall have the power in its own name to do any of the 

following; 

a. When necessary for the day to day operation of the Council, to

make and enter into contracts; 

b. To contract for the services of engineers, attorneys, planners,

financial consultants and separate and apart therefrom to employ such other persons, 

as it deems necessary; 

c. To apply for an appropriate grant or grants under any federal, state,

or local programs. 

d. To receive gifts, contributions and donations of property, funds,

services and other forms of financial assistance from persons, firms, corporations and 

any governmental entity; 

e. To lease, acquire, construct, manage, maintain, and operate any

buildings, works, or improvements; 

f. To delegate some or all of its powers to the Executive Committee

and the Executive Director of the Council as hereinafter provided. 

1.2.3 The association shall have the power in its own name, only with the 

approval of all affected member agencies to; 

a. Acquire, hold and dispose of property by eminent domain, lease,

lease purchase or sale. 

b. To incur debts, liabilities, obligations, and issue bonds;

II. 

ORGANIZATION OF COUNCIL 

20323.00002\1494125.6 3

Attachment 2.3

22



2.1 Parties. 

The parties to WRCOG shall be the County of Riverside and each city 

located within Western Riverside County which has executed or hereafter executes this 

Agreement, or any addenda, amendment, or supplement thereto and agrees to 

such become a member upon such terms and conditions as established by the 

general council or executive committee, and which has not, pursuant to 

provisions hereof, withdrawn therefrom.  Only the parties identified in this section and 

Associate Members approved under section 8.2 of this Agreement, if any, shall be 

considered contracting parties to this Agreement under Government Code section 

6502, provided that the rights of any Associate Member under this Agreement 

shall be limited solely those rights expressly set forth in a PACE Agreement 

authorized in section 8.2 of this Agreement.   

2.2 Names. 

The names, particular capacities and addresses of the parties at any time shall 

be shown on Exhibit "A" attached hereto, as amended or supplemented from time to 

time. 

2.3  Duties. 

WRCOG shall do whatever is necessary and required to carry out the 

purposes of this agreement and when authorized by an Implementation Agreement 

pursuant to section 1.2.3 as appropriate, to make and enter into such contracts, incur 

such debts and obligations, assess contributions from the members, and perform such 

other acts as are necessary to the accomplishment of the purposes of such agreement, 

20323.00002\1494125.6 4

Attachment 2.4

23



within the provisions of Government Code Section 6500 et seq.  and as prescribed by 

the laws of the State of California. 

2.4  Governing Body. 

2.4.1. WRCOG shall be governed by a General Assembly with 

membership consisting of the appropriate representatives from the County of Riverside, 

each city which is a signatory to this Agreement, Western Municipal Water District, and 

Eastern Municipal Water District, the number of which shall be determined as 

hereinafter set forth.  The General Assembly shall meet at least once annually, 

preferably scheduled in the evening.  Each member agency of the General Assembly 

shall have one vote for each mayor, council member, county supervisor, and water 

district board member present at the General Assembly.  The General Assembly shall 

act only upon a majority of a quorum.  A quorum shall consist of a majority of the total 

authorized representatives, provided that members representing a majority of the 

member agencies are present.  The General Assembly shall adopt and amend by-laws 

for the administration and management of this Agreement, which when adopted and 

approved shall be an integral part of this Agreement. Such by-laws may provide for the 

management and administration of this Agreement. 

2.4.2. There shall be an Executive Committee which exercises the powers 

of this Agreement between sessions of the General Assembly.  Members of the 

Executive Committee shall be the Mayor from each of the member cities, four members 

of the Riverside County Board of Supervisors and the President of each Water District, 

the remaining member of the Board of Supervisors shall serve as an alternate, except 

any City Council, at its discretion, can appoint a Mayor Pro Tem or other city council 

20323.00002\1494125.6 5

Attachment 2.5

24



member in place of the Mayor, and each water district board, at its discretion, can 

appoint another board member in place of the President.  The Executive Committee 

shall act only upon a majority of a quorum.  A quorum shall consist of a majority of the 

member agencies.  Membership of the Water Districts on the General Assembly and 

Executive Committee of WRCOG shall be conditioned on the Water Districts entering 

into a separate Memorandums of Understanding with WRCOG.   

2.4.3. Each member of the General Assembly and the Executive 

Committee shall be a current member of the legislative body such member represents. 

2.4.4. Each participating member on the Executive Committee shall also 

have an alternate, who must also be a current member of the legislative body of the 

party such alternate represents.  The name of the alternate members shall be on file 

with the Executive Committee.  In the absence of the regular member from an agency, 

the alternate member from such agency shall assume all rights and duties of the absent 

regular member. 

2.5 Executive Director. 

The Executive Director shall be the chief administrative officer of the 

Council.  He shall receive such compensation as may be fixed by the Executive 

Committee.  The powers and duties of the Executive Director shall be subject to the 

authority of the Executive Committee and include the following: 

a. To appoint, direct and remove employees of the Council.

b. Annually to prepare and present a proposed budget to the Executive

Committee and General Assembly. 

c. Serve as Secretary of the Council and of the Executive Committee.

20323.00002\1494125.6 6

Attachment 2.6

25



d. To attend meetings of the Executive Committee.

e. To perform such other and additional duties as the Executive Committee

may require. 

2.6 Principal Office. 

The principal office of WRCOG shall be established by the Executive 

Committee and shall be located within Western Riverside County.  The Executive 

Committee is hereby granted full power and authority to change said principal office 

from one location to another within Western Riverside County.  Any change shall be 

noted by the Secretary under this section but shall not be considered an amendment to 

this Agreement. 

2.7 Meetings. 

The Executive Committee shall meet at the principal office of the agency 

or at such other place as may be designated by the Executive Committee.  The time 

and place of regular meetings of the Executive Committee shall be determined by 

resolution adopted by the Executive Committee; a copy of such resolution shall be 

furnished to each party hereto.  Regular, adjourned and special meetings shall be called 

and conducted in accordance with the provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act, 

Government Code Section 54950 et. seq., as it may be amended. 

2.8 Powers and Limitations of the Executive Committee. 

Unless otherwise provided herein, each member or participating alternate 

of the Executive Committee shall be entitled to one vote, and a vote of the majority of 

those present and qualified to vote constituting a quorum may adopt any motion, 

20323.00002\1494125.6 7

Attachment 2.7

26



resolution, or order and take any other action they deem appropriate to carry forward 

the objectives of the Council. 

2.9 Minutes. 

The secretary of the Council shall cause to be kept minutes of regular 

adjourned regular and special meetings of the General Assembly and Executive 

Committee, and shall cause a copy of the minutes to be forwarded to each member and 

to each of the members hereto. 

2.10 Rules. 

The Executive Committee may adopt from time to time such rules and 

regulations for the conduct of its affairs consistent with this agreement or any 

Implementation Agreement. 

2.11 Vote or Assent of Members. 

The vote, assent or approval of the members in any manner as may be 

required, hereunder shall be evidenced by a certified copy of the action of the governing 

body of such party filed with the Council.  It shall be the responsibility of the Executive 

Director to obtain certified copies of said actions. 

2.12 Officers. 

There shall be selected from the membership of the Executive Committee, 

a chairperson and a vice chairperson.  The Executive Director shall be the secretary.  

The Treasurer of the County of Riverside shall be the Treasurer of the Council and the 

Controller or Auditor of the County of Riverside shall be the Auditor of the Council.  

Such persons shall possess the powers of, and shall perform the treasurer and auditor 

functions respectively, for WRCOG and perform those functions required of them by 

20323.00002\1494125.6 8

Attachment 2.8

27



Government Code Sections 6505, 6505.5 and 6505.6, and by all other applicable laws 

and regulations, including any subsequent amendments thereto. 

The chairperson and vice chairperson, shall hold office for a period of one 

year commencing July 1st of each and every fiscal year; provided, however, the first 

chairperson and vice chairperson appointed shall hold office from the date of 

appointment to June 30th of the ensuing fiscal year.  Except for the Executive Director, 

any officer, employee, or agent of the Executive Committee may also be an officer, 

employee, or agent of any of the members.  The appointment by the Executive 

Committee of such a person shall be evidence that the two positions are compatible. 

2.13 Committees. 

The Executive Committee may, as it deems appropriate, appoint 

committees to accomplish the purposes set forth herein.  All committee meetings of 

WRCOG, including those of the Executive Committee, shall be open to all members. 

2.14 Additional Officers and Employees. 

The Executive Committee shall have the power to authorize such 

additional officers and assistants as may be appropriate.  Such officers and employees 

may also be, but are not required to be, officers and employees of the individual 

members. 

2.15 Bonding Requirement. 

The officers or persons who have charge of, handle, or have access to 

any property of WRCOG shall be the members of the Executive Committee, the 

treasurer, the Executive Director, and any other officers or persons to be designated or 

empowered by the Executive Committee.  Each such officer or person shall be required 

20323.00002\1494125.6 9

Attachment 2.9

28



to file an official bond with the Executive Committee in an amount which shall be 

established by the Executive Committee.  Should the existing bond or bonds of any 

such officer be extended to cover the obligations provided herein, said bond shall be the 

official bond required herein.  The premiums on any such bonds attributable to the 

coverage required herein shall be appropriate expenses of WRCOG. 

2.16 Status of Officers and Employees. 

All of the privileges and immunities from liability, exemption from laws, 

ordinances and rules, all pension, relief, disability, worker's compensation, and other 

benefits which apply to the activity of officers, agents, or employees of any of the 

members when performing their respective functions shall apply to them to the same 

degree and extent while engaged in the performance of any of the functions and other 

duties under this Agreement.  None of the officers, agents, or employees appointed by 

the Executive Committee shall be deemed, by reason of their employment by the 

Executive Committee, to be employed by any of the members or, by reason of their 

employment by the Executive Committee, to be subject to any of the requirements of 

such members. 

2.17 Restrictions. 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 6509, for the purposes of determining the 

restrictions to be imposed by the Council in its exercise of the above-described joint 

powers, reference shall be made to, and the Council shall observe, the restrictions 

imposed upon the County of Riverside. 

2.18 Water Districts and TUMF Matters. 

20323.00002\1494125.6 10

Attachment 2.10

29



Pursuant to this Joint Powers Agreement, WRCOG administers the 

Transportation Mitigation Fee (“TUMF”) for cities in western Riverside County.  The fee 

was established prior to the Water District’s involvement with WRCOG and will fund 

transportation improvements for the benefit of the County of Riverside and the cities in 

western Riverside County.  As such, the Western Municipal Water District and the 

Eastern Municipal Water District General Assembly and Executive Committee Members 

shall not vote on any matter related to the administration of the TUMF program or the 

expenditure of TUMF revenues.   

III 

FUNDS AND PROPERTY 

3.1 Treasurer. 

The Treasury of the member agency whose Treasurer is the Treasurer for 

WRCOG shall be the depository for WRCOG.  The Treasurer of the Council shall have 

custody of all funds and shall provide for strict accountability thereof in accordance with 

Government Code Section 6505.5 and other applicable laws of the State of California.  

He or she shall perform all of the duties required in Government Code Section 6505 and 

following, such other duties as may be prescribed by the Executive Committee. 

3.2. Expenditure of Funds. 

The funds under this Agreement shall be expended only in furtherance of the 

purposes hereof and in accordance with the laws of the State of California and standard 

accounting practices shall be used to account for all funds received and disbursed. 

3.3. Fiscal Year. 

20323.00002\1494125.6 11

Attachment 2.11

30



WRCOG shall be operated on a fiscal year basis, beginning on July 1 of each 

year and continuing until June 30 of the succeeding year.  Prior to July 1 of each year, 

the General Assembly shall adopt a final budget for the expenditures of WRCOG during 

the following fiscal Year. 

3.4. Contributions/Public Funds. 

In preparing the budget, the General Assembly by majority vote of a quorum shall 

determine the amount of funds which will be required from its members for the purposes 

of this Agreement.  The funds required from its members after approval of the final 

budget shall be raised by contributions 50% of which will be assessed on a per capita 

basis and 50% on an assessed valuation basis, each city paying on the basis of its 

population and assessed valuation and the County paying on the basis of the population 

and assessed valuation within the unincorporated area of Western Riverside County as 

defined in the by-laws.  The parties, when informed of their respective contributions, 

shall pay the same before August lst of the fiscal year for which they are assessed or 

within sixty days of being informed of the assessment, whichever occurs later.  In 

addition to the contributions provided, advances of public funds from the parties may be 

made for the purposes of this Agreement.  When such advances are made, they shall 

be repaid from the first available funds of WRCOG. 

The General Assembly shall have the power to determine that personnel, 

equipment or property of one or more of the parties to the Agreement may be used in 

lieu of fund contributions or advances. 

20323.00002\1494125.6 12

Attachment 2.12

31



All contributions and funds shall be paid to WRCOG and shall be disbursed by a 

majority vote of a quorum of the Executive Committee, as authorized by the approved 

budget. 

3.5 Contribution from Water Districts. 

The provision of section 3.4 above shall be inapplicable to the Western Municipal 

Water District and the Eastern Municipal Water District.  The amount of contributions 

from these water districts shall be through the WRCOG budget process.  

IV 

BUDGETS AND DISBURSEMENTS 

4.1 Annual Budget. 

The Executive Committee may at any time amend the budget to 

incorporate additional income and disbursements that might become available to 

WRCOG for its purposes during a fiscal year. 

4.2 Disbursements. 

The Executive Director shall request warrants from the Auditor in 

accordance with budgets approved by the General Assembly or Executive Committee 

subject to quarterly review by the Executive Committee.  The Treasurer shall pay such 

claims or disbursements and such requisitions for payment in accordance with rules, 

regulations, policies, procedures and bylaws adopted by the Executive Committee. 

4.3 Accounts. 

All funds will be placed in appropriate accounts and the receipt, transfer, 

or disbursement of such funds during the term of this Agreement shall be accounted for 

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles applicable to governmental 

20323.00002\1494125.6 13

Attachment 2.13

32



entities and pursuant to Government Code Sections 6505 et seq. and any other 

applicable laws of the State of California.  There shall be strict accountability of all 

funds.  All revenues and expenditures shall be reported to the Executive Committee. 

4.4 Expenditures Within Approved Annual Budget. 

All expenditures shall be made within the approved annual budget.  No 

expenditures in excess of those budgeted shall be made without the approval of a 

majority of a quorum of the Executive Committee. 

4.5 Audit. 

The records and accounts of WRCOG shall be audited annually by an 

independent certified public accountant and copies of such audit report shall be filed 

with the County Auditor, State Controller and each party to WRCOG no later than fifteen 

(15) days after receipt of said audit by the Executive Committee.

4.6 Reimbursement of Funds. 

Grant funds received by WRCOG from any federal, state, or local agency 

to pay for budgeted expenditures for which WRCOG has received all or a portion of said 

funds from the parties hereto shall be used as determined by WRCOG's Executive  

Committee. 

V 

LIABILITIES 

5.1 Liabilities. 

The debts, liabilities, and obligation of WRCOG shall be the debts, 

liabilities, or obligations of WRCOG alone and not of the parties to this Agreement. 

5.2 Hold Harmless and Indemnity. 

20323.00002\1494125.6 14

Attachment 2.14

33



Each party hereto agrees to indemnify and hold the other parties harmless 

from all liability for damage, actual or alleged, to persons or property arising out of or 

resulting from negligent acts or omissions of the indemnifying party or its employees.  

Where the General Assembly or Executive Committee itself or its agents or employees 

are held liable for injuries to persons or property, each party's liability for contribution or 

indemnity for such injuries shall be based proportionately upon the contributions (less 

voluntary contributions) of each member.  In the event of liability imposed upon any of 

the parties to this Agreement, or upon the General Assembly or Executive Committee 

created by this Agreement, for injury which is caused by the negligent or wrongful act or 

omission of any of the parties in the performance of this Agreement, the contribution of 

the party or parties not directly responsible for the negligent or wrongful act or omission 

shall be limited to One Hundred Dollars ($100.00).  The party or parties directly 

responsible for the negligent or wrongful acts or omissions shall indemnify, defend, and 

hold all other parties harmless from any liability for personal injury or property damage 

arising out of the performance of this Agreement.  The voting for or against a matter 

being considered by the General Assembly or executive or other committee or 

WRCOG, or abstention from voting on such matter, shall not be construed to constitute 

a wrongful act or omission within the meaning of this Subsection. 

VI 

ADMISSION AND WITHDRAWAL OF PARTIES 

6.1 Admission of New Parties. 

It is recognized that additional cities other than the original parties, may 

wish to participate in WRCOG.  Any Western Riverside County city may become a party 

20323.00002\1494125.6 15

Attachment 2.15

34



to WRCOG upon such terms and conditions as established by the General Assembly or 

Executive Committee.  Any Western Riverside County city shall become a party to 

WRCOG by the adoption by the city council of this agreement and the execution of a 

written addendum thereto agreeing to the terms of this Agreement and agreeing to any 

additional terms and conditions that may be established by the general assembly or 

Executive Committee.  Special districts which are significantly involved in regional 

problems and the boundaries of which include territory within the collective area of the 

membership shall be eligible for advisory membership in the Council.  The 

representative of any such advisory member may participate in the work of committees 

of the Council. 

6.2 Withdrawal from WRCOG. 

It is fully anticipated that each party hereto shall participate in WRCOG 

until the purposes set forth in this Agreement are accomplished.  The withdrawal of any 

party, either voluntary or involuntary, unless otherwise provided by the General 

Assembly or Executive Committee, shall be conditioned as follows: 

a. In the case of a voluntary withdrawal following a properly noticed

public hearing, written notice shall be given to WRCOG, six months prior to the effective 

date of withdrawal; 

b. Withdrawal shall not relieve the party of its proportionate share of

any debts or other liabilities incurred by WRCOG prior to the effective date of the 

parties' notice of withdrawal; 

c. Unless otherwise provided by a unanimous vote of the Executive

Committee, withdrawal shall result in the forfeiture of that party's rights and claims 

20323.00002\1494125.6 16

Attachment 2.16

35



relating to distribution of property and funds upon termination of WRCOG as set forth in 

Section VII below; 

d. Withdrawal from any Implementation Agreement shall not be

deemed withdrawal from membership in WRCOG. 

VII 

TERMINATION AND DISPOSITION OF ASSETS 

7.1 Termination of this Agreement. 

WRCOG shall continue to exercise the joint powers herein until the 

termination of this Agreement and any extension thereof or until the parties shall have 

mutually rescinded this Agreement; providing, however, that WRCOG and this 

Agreement shall continue to exist for the purposes of disposing of all claims, distribution 

of assets and all other functions necessary to conclude the affairs of WRCOG. 

Termination shall be accomplished by written consent of all of the parties, 

or shall occur upon the withdrawal from WRCOG of a sufficient number of the agencies 

enumerated herein so as to leave less than five of the enumerated agencies remaining 

in WRCOG. 

7.2 Distribution of Property and Funds. 

In the event of the termination of this Agreement, any property interest 

remaining in WRCOG following the discharge of all obligations shall be disposed of as 

the Executive Committee shall determine with the objective of distributing to each 

remaining party a proportionate return on the contributions made to such properties by 

such parties, less previous returns, if any. 

VIII 

20323.00002\1494125.6 17

Attachment 2.17

36



PACE IMPLEMENTATION AND PARTICIPATION AGREEMENTS; 

ASSOCIATE MEMBERSHIP 

8.1 Execution of Agreement. 

When authorized by the Executive Committee, any affected member 

agency or agencies enumerated herein, may execute an Implementation Agreement for 

the purpose of authorizing WRCOG to implement, manage and administer area-wide 

and regional programs in the interest of the local public welfare.  The costs incurred by 

WRCOG in implementing a program including indirect costs, shall be assessed only to 

those public agencies who are parties to that Implementation Agreement. 

8.2 PACE Agreements; Associate Membership. 

WRCOG shall be empowered to establish and operate one or more 

Property Assessed Clean Energy (“PACE”) programs pursuant to Chapter 29 of the 

Improvement Bond Act of 1911, being Division 7 of the California Streets and Highways 

Code, and to enter into one or more agreements, including without limitation, 

participation agreements, implementation agreements and joint powers agreements and 

amendments thereto to fulfill such programs both within and outside the jurisdictional 

boundaries of WRCOG. 

WRCOG, acting through its Executive Committee, shall be empowered to 

establish an “Associate Member” status that provides membership in WRCOG to local 

jurisdictions that are outside WRCOG’s jurisdictional boundaries but within whose 

boundaries a PACE program will be established and implemented by WRCOG. Said 

local jurisdictions shall become Associate Members of WRCOG by adopting one or 

more agreements (the “PACE Agreement”) on the terms and conditions established by 

20323.00002\1494125.6 18

Attachment 2.18

37



the Executive Committee and consistent with the requirements of the Joint Exercise of 

Powers Act, being 5 of Division 7, Title 1 of the California Government Code (Sections 

6500 et seq.).  The rights of Associate Members shall be limited solely to those terms 

and conditions expressly set forth in the PACE Agreement for the purposes of 

implementing the PACE program within their jurisdictional boundaries.  Except as 

expressly provided for by the PACE Agreement, Associate Members shall not have any 

rights otherwise granted to WRCOG’s members by this Agreement, including but not 

limited to the right to vote, right to amend this Agreement, and right to sit on committees 

or boards established under this Agreement or by action of the Executive Committee or 

the General Assembly, including, without limitation, the General Assembly and the 

Executive Committee. 

IX 

MISCELLANEOUS 

9.1 Amendments. 

This Agreement may be amended with the approval of not less than 

two-thirds (2/3) of all member agencies. 

20323.00002\1494125.6 19

Attachment 2.19

38



9.2 Notice. 

Any notice or instrument required to be given or delivered by depositing 

the same in any United States Post Office, registered or certified, postage prepaid, 

addressed to the addresses of the parties as shown on Exhibit "A", shall be deemed to 

have been received by the party to whom the same is addressed at the expiration of 

seventy-two (72) hours after deposit of the same in the United States Post Office for 

transmission by registered or certified mail as aforesaid. 

9.3 Effective Date. 

This Agreement shall be effective and WRCOG shall exist from and after 

such date as this Agreement has been executed by any seven or more of the public 

agencies, including the County of Riverside, as listed on page 1 hereof. 

20323.00002\1494125.6 20

Attachment 2.20

39



9.4 Arbitration. 

Any controversy or claim between any two or more parties to this 

Agreement, or between any such party or parties and WRCOG,  with respect to 

disputes, demands, differences, controversies, or misunderstandings arising in relation 

to interpretation of this Agreement, or any breach thereof, shall be submitted to and 

determined by arbitration.  The party desiring to initiate arbitration shall give notice of its 

intention to arbitrate to every other party to this Agreement and to the Executive Director 

of the Council.  Such notice shall designate as "respondents" such other parties as the 

initiating party intends to have bound by any award made therein.  Any party not so 

designated but which desires to join in the arbitration may, within ten (10) days of 

service upon it of such notice, file with all other parties and with the Executive Director 

of the Council a response indicating its intention to join in and to be bound by the results 

of the arbitration, and further designating any other parties it wishes to name as a 

respondent.  Within twenty (20) days of the service of the initial demand for arbitration, 

the initiating party and the respondent or respondents shall each designate a person to 

act as an arbitrator.  The designated arbitrators shall mutually designate the minimal 

number of additional persons as arbitrators as may be necessary to create an odd total 

number of arbitrators but not less than three to serve as arbitrator(s). 

The arbitrators shall proceed to arbitrate the matter in accordance with the 

provisions of Title 9 of Part 3 of the Code of Civil Procedure, Section 1280 et. seq.  The 

parties to this Agreement agree that the decision of the arbitrators will be binding and 

will not be subject to judicial review except on the ground that the arbitrators have 

exceeded the scope of their authority. 

20323.00002\1494125.6 21

Attachment 2.21

40



9.5 Partial Invalidity. 

If any one or more of the terms, provisions, sections, promises, covenants 

or conditions of this Agreement shall to any extent be adjudged invalid, unenforceable, 

void or voidable for any reason whatsoever by a court of competent jurisdiction, each 

and all of the remaining terms, provisions, sections, promises, covenants and conditions 

of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby and shall be valid and enforceable to the 

fullest extent permitted by law. 

9.6 Successors. 

This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the 

successors of the parties hereto. 

9.7 Assignment. 

The parties hereto shall not assign any rights or obligations under this 

Agreement without written consent of all other parties. 

9.8 Execution. 

The Board of Supervisors of the County of Riverside and the city councils 

of the cities enumerated herein have each authorized execution of this Agreement as 

evidenced by the authorized signatures below, respectively. 

20323.00002\1494125.6 22

Attachment 2.22

41



Original Members Agencies 

1. City of Banning

2. City of Beaumont (withdrawn)

3. City of Calimesa

4. City of Canyon Lake

5. City of Corona

6. City of Hemet

7. City of Lake Elsinore

8. City of Moreno Valley

9. City of Murrieta

10. City of Norco

11. City of Perris

12. City of Riverside

13. City of San Jacinto

14. City of Temecula

15. County of Riverside

Additional City Members 

1. City of Eastvale (added on 08/02/2010, Resolution 01-11)

2. City of Jurupa Valley (added on 07/29/2011, Resolution 02-12)

3. City of Menifee (added on 10/06/2008, Resolution 03-09)

4. City of Wildomar (added on 08/04/2008, Resolution 01-09)

20323.00002\1494125.6 23

Attachment 2.23

42



THE WESTERN RIVERSIDE 

COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

Participating Agencies  

5. Eastern Municipal Water District (membership on the Governing Board

of WRCOG, 05/11/2009)

6. Western Municipal Water District (membership on the Governing Board

of WRCOG, 05/11/2009)

7. Riverside County Superintendent of Schools (membership as an ex-

officio, advisory member of WRCOG, 11/07/2011)

8. Morongo Band of Mission Indians (membership as an ex-officio,

advisory member of WRCOG, 6/4/2013)

20323.00002\1494125.6 24

Attachment 2.24

43



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    City of Nevada City 

         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA  95959 

July 27, 2016       www.nevadacityca.gov 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

TITLE: Land Use Covenant for Stiles Mill Property 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Pass Resolution 2016-XX authorizing the Mayor to sign the 
Land Use Covenant and Agreement to Restrict Use of Property, Environmental 
Restrictions required by Department of Toxic Substances. 
 
CONTACT:  Dawn Zydonis, Parks & Recreation Supervisor 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION: In 2010, the City received funding for a Brownfields 
Clean-Up Grant administered through the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).  The 
grant allowed the City to work in partnership with Sierra Streams Institute (SSI) to 
complete clean-up of mine waste on the property that the City refers to as Stiles Mill.  
This property is located underneath the Pine Street Bridge and is accessed through the 
Clark St. trail.   
 
The clean-up work completed on the project included removal or capping of 
contaminated soils that remained from mining activities, terracing and revegetating the 
mine tailings pile to prevent erosion into the creek and blocking access to the open mine 
shaft on the property.  The soils that were on the property can be dangerous to public 
health due to high levels of arsenic and lead. 
 
To complete the work on the project a Removal Action Work Plan (RAW) was submitted 
to the Department of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC) for approval of the processes 
planned for clean-up of the property.  A condition of working with DTSC is that the City 
must commit to a Land Use Covenant Agreement (LUC) with DTSC.  Through the LUC 
the City is committing to caring for the property in a way that will ensure that the work 
completed is not disturbed.  
 
The LUC is attached for your review.  City staff have reviewed the Agreement closely 
and recommends the City Council authorize the mayor to sign the attached agreement. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS: Environmental concerns are addressed within 
the Agreement.  The City is not able to do any work on the property that would disrupt 
the soil without completing a Soil Management Plan.  The City must complete annual 
inspections to ensure that the work completed through the Brownfields Clean-up Grant 
remains intact and is not disturbed. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: DTSC will require payment for their review of annual inspections that 
are submitted by the City.  This is addressed in Article 3.5 of the LUC. 
 
ATTACHMENT: 

 Land Use Covenant and Agreement to Restrict Use of Property – Environmental 
Restrictions 

 Resolution 2016-XX Authorizing Mayor to Sign Land Use Covenant 

44

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



 

RESOLUTION 2016-XX 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF NEVADA CITY 

APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING MAYOR TO SIGN THE LAND USE  

COVENANT AND AGREEMENT TO RESTRICT USE OF PROPERTY – 

ENVIRONMENTAL RESTRICTIONS  

 

 

 WHEREAS, the City has completed a Brownfields Clean-up Grant awarded by 
the Environmental Protection Agency with assistance from Sierra Streams Institute; and 
  

 WHEREAS, the California Department of Toxic Substance Control oversaw the 
removal of contaminated materials from the Stiles Mill Site; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the City intends to preserve the Stiles Mill Site as noted in the Land 
Use Covenant; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the City understands the importance of maintaining healthy outdoor 
spaces for our residents and visitors. 
 

BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of Nevada City, approves and 
authorizes the Mayor to sign the Land Use Covenant and Agreement to Restrict Use of 
Property – Environmental Restrictions, attached hereto. 

 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regularly scheduled meeting of the Nevada City 
City Council held on this 27th day of July, 2016 by the following vote: 
 

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:  

 

____________________________ 

Evans Phelps, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

Niel Locke, City Clerk 

59



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    City of Nevada City 
         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA  95959 
July 27, 2016       www.nevadacityca.gov 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE: Proposition 84, Integrated Regional Water Management (IRWM) Implementation 
Grant Agreement 4600009716 Amendment #2 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Review and authorize the Mayor to sign Proposition 84, Integrated 
Regional Water Management (IRWM) Implementation Grant Agreement 4600009716 
Amendment #2 
   
CONTACT:  Catrina Olson, Assistant City Manager 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  
In July 2013 the City of Nevada City entered into an agreement with the State of California 
Department of Water Resources for a Proposition 84 IRWM Grant to fund water projects for the 
City of Nevada City, the Town of Washington, Placer County Water Agency, and American 
Rivers.  The City has been working diligently to complete projects for the City and the Town of 
Washington and in the course of this work amendments to the original agreement are required 
to continue moving forward with the grant tasks. 
 
Attached is the IRWM Grant Agreement with the modifications identified as follows; 

 Exhibit A, Work Plan modified to change the mechanism used to facilitate the 
implementation of the instream flow dedication projects in the CABY region. 

 Exhibit B, Schedule is modified to extend the time period during which project 
planning and implementation will occur through December 31, 2017. 

 Exhibit C, Budget is modified to add $30,000 of Grant Share funds to Budget 
Category (c) and to reduce the Grant Share funds to Budget Category (d) by 
$30,000. 
 

The extension for the American Rivers changed the overall completion dates for the entire 
agreement.  Nevada City and the Washington Water District projects are planned to be 
complete by the end of the 1st quarter of 2017.  Attached is a CABY project status report.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
None 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 
 Proposition 84 Grant Agreement 4600009716 Amendment #2 
 Nevada City Implementation Grant Project Status 

60

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



1 

[Type here] 
 

 

CITY OF NEVADA CITY 
DRAFT ACTION MINUTES 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF JULY 6, 2016 
 

 
NOTE:  This meeting is available to view on the City’s website www.nevadacityca.gov – Go to Quick Links and 
Click on Agendas & Minutes and find the Archived Videos in the middle of the screen.  Select the meeting date and 
Click on Video to watch the meeting.  For website assistance, please contact Corey Shaver, Deputy City Clerk at 
(530) 265-2496, ext 133. 
 
-  City Council Meetings are available on DVD.  To order, contact City Hall - cost is $15.00 per DVD.   
- Closed Session Meetings are not recorded. 
 

 
 
REGULAR MEETING – 6:30 PM - Call to Order 
 
Roll Call:  Present:  Andersen, Bergman, Strawser, Vice Mayor Phelps & Mayor Ray 
  
      
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE    
 
PROCLAMATION:   
 
PRESENTATION:   
 
1.  BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR-PUBLIC COMMENT (Per Government Code Section 54954.3) 
 
Please refer to the meeting video on the City’s website at www.nevadacityca.gov. 
 
2.  COUNCIL MEMBERS REQUESTED ITEMS AND COMMITTEE REPORTS: 
 
Please refer to the meeting video on the City’s website at www.nevadacityca.gov for additional comments. 
 
3. CONSENT ITEMS: 

 

A. Subject: An Ordinance of the City of Nevada City Amending Subsection G of Section 17.72.060 of Chapter 
17.72 of the Nevada City Municipal Code Pertaining to Fees for Administrative Home Occupations (Second 
Reading) 
Recommendation: Waive reading, read title only, and adopt Ordinance 2016-03 Amending Subsection G of 
Section 17.72.060 of Chapter 17.72 of the Nevada City Municipal Code Pertaining to Fees for Administrative 
Home Occupations. 
 

B. Subject:  An Ordinance of the City of Nevada City amending Chapter 5.32 to Title 5 of the Nevada City 
Municipal Code Relating to Licensure of Tobacco Retailers (Second Reading) 
Recommendation:  Waive reading, read by title only, and adopt Ordinance 2016-04 amending Chapter 5.32 
to Title 5 of the Nevada City Municipal Code Relating to Licensure of Tobacco Retailers. 
 

C. Subject: Resolution Declaring Results of June 7, 2016 Municipal Election 
Recommendation: Pass Resolution 2016-33 declaring results of municipal election held June 7, 2016. 

 
Action:  Motion by Bergman, seconded by Andersen to approve Consent Items as presented. 
(Approved 5 – 0) 
 

4.  APPROVAL OF ACTION MINUTES: 

 
A. City Council Meeting – City Council Meeting – June 22, 2016 

 
Action:  Motion by Bergman, seconded by Strawser to approve the June 22, 2016 Minutes as presented. 
(Approved 5 – 0) 

 
 

72

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/
http://www.nevadacityca.gov/
http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


2 

[Type here] 
 

 

 
5. OUTGONG COUNCIL MEMBER & MAYOR COMMENTS 

 
Please refer to the meeting video on the City’s website at www.nevadacityca.gov. 

 
6. SWEARING IN OF COUNCIL MEMBERS – Valerie Moberg, David Parker and Reinette Senum 

 
Please refer to the meeting video on the City’s website at www.nevadacityca.gov. 

 
7. REORGNIZATION OF CITY COUNCIL 
 

A. Subject:  Selection of Mayor and Vice Mayor to Serve for Fiscal Year 2016-2017 
Recommendation:  Conduct the selection process for Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem (Vice Mayor) in 
accordance with the Mayoral Succession adopted as amended pursuant to Resolution 2012-27. 

 
Action: Pursuant to the Mayoral Succession policy Evans Phelps accepted the position of Mayor and Duane Strawser 
accepted the position of Vice Mayor. The Council took a brief recess for public congratulations before the Council 
reconvened with new members. 
 
8. DEPARTMENT REQUESTED ACTION ITEMS AND UPDATE REPORTS: 

 
9. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

 

10. OLD BUSINESS: 
 

A. Subject:  Informational Update on 2016 Wild and Scenic Film Festival 
Recommendation:  Receive and file. 

 
Please refer to the meeting video on the City’s website at www.nevadacityca.gov. 

 
11. NEW BUSINESS: 

 
12. CORRESPONDENCE: 

 
13. ANNOUNCEMENTS: 

 
Please refer to the meeting video on the City’s website at www.nevadacityca.gov. 
 
14. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT:    
 
15. ADJOURNMENT – 7:28 p.m. 

 
 
 
        _________________________________ 
        Evans Phelps, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Niel Locke, City Clerk 

73

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/
http://www.nevadacityca.gov/
http://www.nevadacityca.gov/
http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


1 

[Type here] 
 

 

CITY OF NEVADA CITY 
DRAFT ACTION MINUTES 

SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF JULY 13, 2016 
 

 
NOTE:  This meeting is available to view on the City’s website www.nevadacityca.gov – Go to Quick Links and 
Click on Agendas & Minutes and find the Archived Videos in the middle of the screen.  Select the meeting date and 
Click on Video to watch the meeting.  For website assistance, please contact Corey Shaver, Deputy City Clerk at 
(530) 265-2496, ext. 133. 
 
-  City Council Meetings are available on DVD.  To order, contact City Hall - cost is $15.00 per DVD.   
- Closed Session Meetings are not recorded. 
 

 
 
SPECIAL MEETING – 6:30 PM - Call to Order 
 
Roll Call:      Present:   Moberg, Parker, Senum & Mayor Phelps    

    Absent:  Vice Mayor Strawser 
      
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE    
 
BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT (Per Government Code Section 54954.3) 
 

Please refer to the meeting video on the City’s website at www.nevadacityca.gov. 
 

1. Subject: Resolution in support of the Nevada City Police Department and Law Enforcement Officers Nationwide 
Recommendation: Pass Resolution 2016-34 in support of the Nevada City Police Department and Law 
Enforcement Officers Nationwide. 
 

Action:  Motion by Parker, seconded by Moberg to approve Consent Items as presented. 
(Approved 4 – 0; Vice Mayor Strawser absent) 
 
 

ADJOURNMENT – 9:32 p.m. 
 

 
 
        _________________________________ 
        Evans Phelps, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Niel Locke, City Clerk 

74

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/
http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    City of Nevada City 
         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA  95959 
July 27, 2016       www.nevadacityca.gov 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE: City of Nevada City Surplus Property Disposition Policy 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Pass Resolution 2016-XX adopting the City of Nevada City 
Surplus Property Disposition Policy. 
 
CONTACT:  Catrina Olson, Assistant City Manager 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  
The City of Nevada City, at times, will possess property which has exceeded its useful 
life or is determined to no longer be needed by the City.  Currently the staff brings a 
resolution forward to City Council for approval to remove any such equipment from 
inventory and deem it surplus property regardless of value.   
 
Many cities have a Surplus Property Disposition Policy that allows a council designated 
staff member to make the determination as to what City equipment should be removed 
from inventory.  That designated staff member will also evaluate and decide the most 
fiscally prudent way for the asset to be disposed of.  In most policies the City Manager 
and Finance and Administration Departments are involved in the process of removing 
the asset and items that are valued at a relatively minor value and are eligible to be 
determined surplus without a resolution being brought forward to City Council.  The 
most common threshold is $5,000. 
 
The recommended policy assigns these responsibilities to the City Manager and/or 
Assistant City Manager, sets the equipment threshold value at $5,000 and establishes a 
disposition procedure.  Adopting this policy will create added flexibility and efficiency for 
the City to expedite the process of discarding unneeded assets. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
None 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 
 Resolution 2016-XX Adopting the Surplus Property Disposition Policy 
 Surplus Property Disposition Policy 

75

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


 
RESOLUTION NO. 2016-XX 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF NEVADA CITY 
TO ADOPT A SURPLUS PROPERTY DISPOSITION POLICY 

 
 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Nevada City periodically determines that aged vehicles,  
computers, and other miscellaneous equipment has exceeded its useful life or is no 
longer be needed; and  
 
WHEREAS, many cities have a Surplus Property Disposition Policy providing guidance 
related to how City equipment should be removed from inventory; and 
 
WHEREAS, most policies delegate responsibility of removing assets of relatively minor 
value to be determined surplus without a resolution being brought forward to the City 
Council; and 
 
WHEREAS, the most common threshold is $5,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, items determined to be surplus property with a value in excess of $5,000 
will continue to require City Council action related to disposition. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of Nevada City 
adopts the City of Nevada City Surplus Property Disposition Policy as attached hereto 
for items valued at $5,000 or under. 
 
Passed and Adopted at the regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Nevada 
City on the 27th day of July, 2016 by the following vote: 
 
AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
ABSTAIN: 
        __________________________ 
        Evans Phelps, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Niel Locke, City Clerk 

76



 
 
 

PURPOSE: 
On occasion, the City of Nevada City will possess property which has exceeded its useful life or is 
determined to no longer be needed by the City, hereinafter referred to as “surplus property.”  Any and 
all equipment purchased with public funds must be accounted for and disposed of in the most fiscally 
prudent way for the government entity. The Finance and Administration Department is responsible for 
the transfer and disposition of surplus property/equipment and supplies.  Operating departments shall 
periodically review their equipment, material and inventory, and notify Finance and Administration in 
writing of any surplus property.  Once it is determined that a piece of equipment is no longer needed or 
useable by the holding department the following must occur:  

 

POLICY GUIDELINES: 
Items that are valued at $5,000 or under should be handled as follows: 

1. In writing, notify the Finance and Administration Department of which equipment/supplies are to 
be removed from the asset schedule as surplus. 

2. Finance and Administration will notify all City departments of the availability of equipment.  If 
another department can use the equipment it will be transferred on the asset schedule to that 
department. 

3. The City Manager and/or Assistant City Manager will determine the value of the equipment and 
the appropriate disposal method.   

4. Finance and Administration will maintain a record of the disposed equipment, including method 
of disposal. 
 

Surplus inventory that is valued greater than $5,000 will be brought forward, by resolution with 
recommended disposal method, to City Council for approval. 

 

Methods of Disposition – The City Manager and/or the Assistant City Manager shall determine which 
of the following methods of disposition is most appropriate and in the best interest of the City which 
exclude City staff and family from participating. 

1. Transfer to Another Department:  Surplus property may be transferred between operating 
departments.  Departments wishing to transfer surplus property to or from another department 
shall submit the request in writing to the Finance and Administration Department which will 

City of Nevada City 
Surplus Property Disposition Policy 

77



handle the financial transaction if the transfer is to occur between the General Fund and 
Enterprise Fund.   

2. Trade-In:  Property declared as surplus may be offered as a trade-in; however, it may not be 
used to offset funding toward the acquisition of the new property.  Revenue from the sale of 
surplus property shall be returned to the appropriate revenue fund as determined by the Finance 
and Administration Department.  All trade-in offers will be submitted to the City Manager and/or 
Assistant City Manager for review and approval of the purchasing. 

3. Return to the Manufacturer:  Surplus property may, when possible, be returned to the 
manufacturer for the buy-back or credit toward the purchase of new property.  When budgeting 
for such an action, the department must budget for the full purchase price of the equipment and 
must have asset replacement funding for the full cost of the new equipment.  The dollar value 
of the buy-back will be credited into the fund balance, not used to offset the purchase of the 
equipment. 

4. Sales:  Surplus property may be offered for sale by the City Manager and/or Assistant City 
Manager.  All surplus property is for sale “as is” and “where is,” with no warranty, guarantee, or 
representation of any kind, expressed or implied, as to the condition, utility or usability or the 
property offered for sale.  Appropriate methods of sale are as follows: 

a. Public Auction - Surplus property may be sold at a public auction.  Public Auctions may 
be conducted by the County of Nevada, or the City staff may contract with an outside 
service. 

b. On-line Auction – Surplus property may be listed on an on-line auction company’s web 
site and sold to the highest responsible bidder. 

c. Sealed Bids – Sealed bids may be solicited for the sale of surplus property.  Surplus 
property disposed of in this manner shall be sold to the highest responsible bidder. 

d. Selling of Scrap – Surplus property may be sold as scrap if the City Manager and/or 
Assistant City Manager deems the value of the raw material exceeds the value of the 
property as a whole. 

e. Negotiated Sale – Surplus property may be sold outright if the City Manager and/or 
Assistant City Manager determines that only one known buyer is available or interested 
in acquiring the property (may not be City staff). 

f. Disposal as Junk – When the cost of locating a buyer exceeds the estimated sale price 
of surplus property, the City Manager and/or Assistant City Manager may destroy or 
dispose of the item as junk. 

5. Donation:  The City may donate usable items with minimal fair market value (such as outdated 
computer equipment and furniture) to a charitable organization for use within the City.   

**Note surplus computer equipment must first be forwarded to Nevada County IT for all content to be 
erased regardless of the disposal method. 

 

Proceeds – Revenue from the sale of surplus property shall be returned to the appropriate revenue 
fund balance (general fund, special fund or enterprise fund); not to the cost centers asset replacement, 
retired equipment reserve. 

 

 

 

78



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    City of Nevada City 

         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA 95959 

JULY 27, 2016       www.nevadacityca.gov 

 

 
TITLE:  Continuation of an Appeal of Planning Commission Decision to Deny the 
Architectural Review Application of Charlotte Dewar to Construct a Front Entry Façade 
on the Accessory Building located at 254 Boulder Street  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 

1. After holding a public hearing, Council shall make a decision whether to uphold, 
overturn or modify the Planning Commission decision to deny the Architectural Review 
Application. 
 

CONTACT:  Amy Wolfson, City Planner 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:   
On March 30, 2016, Council heard an appeal by Charlotte Dewar requesting the City Council 
overturn the Planning Commission’s decision to deny the Architectural Review application for 
the front entry façade of her accessory building. Council voted to continue the item and made a 
motion of intent to approve a modified design, with an offer to work with the appellant to come 
up with a re-designed project in a manner more compatible with the neighboring properties and 
with the Italianate residence on the property. 
 
Continued from the meeting of May 25, 2016, staff brought the above matter to Council on 
June 8 seeking direction as to whether to set a date certain for the appellant to return to 
Council with a modified project design. At that meeting, staff updated Council on the progress 
made at a subcommittee meeting that included Vice-Mayor Phelps, Councilmember Andersen, 
and Allan Haley, the appellant’s attorney. Council voted again to continue the item in order to 
allow the appellant and her attorney to confer over the subcommittee recommendations. The 
subcommittee unanimously favored a barn door concept similar to the exhibit provided as 
Attachment 1. The barn door preference was, in part, due to a review of the 1898 Sanborn 
Map which represents a structure in substantially the same location as the current structure, 
and due to the emergence of an historic photograph showing the subject structure utilized as a 
barn (Attachment 2). At the June 22 meeting staff reported to Council that the July 27th 
meeting date would allow adequate time for the applicant to evaluate the sub-committee’s 
recommendation and provide a modified design proposal.  
 
The applicant has provided new exhibits included as Attachment 3. Ms. Dewar has opted to 
retain the original design concept citing that the sliding barn door preference would not 
adequately protect the existing doors and also citing the consistency of her proposed design 
with three other existing doors on the structure.   
 
Below is a list of City Council video records and the corresponding minutes of those records 
relevant to the subject hearing item:  
 
 
 
 

79

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


Meeting Date Video Record Minutes 

3/30/2016 1:14:07 – 2:21:51 (audio is very poor – turn audio controls 
to maximum volume) 

5/25/2016 24:50 – 50:38 

6/8/2016 1:21:33 – 1:43:59 

6/22/2016 30:37 – 33:33 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the following options for motions that may be made in response to the 
appeal request: 
 
Motion to Overturn/Modify 

1. In overturning and approving the revised Architectural Review application, as 
conditioned, for the proposed construction of the front entry façade of the accessory 
building located at 254 Boulder Avenue, Nevada City, CA, the City Council finds: 
 

a. that the entry facade is generally compatible with Nevada City’s style of 
architecture; and  
 

b. that the entry façade is compatible with the context of the surrounding 
neighborhood.  

 
RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: 

1. Prior to issuance of a building permit for the front façade, the applicant shall submit 
three sets of plans, along with the review fee of $80 to the City Planner for review, 
approval.  Once stamped, the applicant can proceed to the Building Department for 
permit issuance. 
 

Motion to Uphold 
1. In upholding the Planning Commission’s decision to deny the Architectural Review 

application for the proposed construction of the front entry façade of the accessory 
building located at 254 Boulder Avenue, Nevada City, CA, the City Council finds: 
 

a. that the entry facade is not  generally compatible with Nevada City’s style of 
architecture; and  
 

b. that the entry façade is not compatible with the context of the surrounding 
neighborhood.  

 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS: Because structures accessory to a residence meet 
criteria in the R1 zoning designation, as an allowed use on the property, local authority can 
only be ministerial in nature. Sections 21080 of the Public Resource Code, of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), exempts ministerial projects from environmental review. 
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS:  None 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

1. Sub-committee design concept preference exhibit 
2. 1940s photograph and 1898 Sanborn Map exhibit 
3. Current applicant design proposal 

80



81



Marsh House 

Subject Structure 

From 1898 Sanborn Map 

Attachment 2 

82



Attachment 3 

83



NEVADA CITY/CABY – DWR/PROP 84 IMPLEMENTATION GRANT - PROJECT STATUS 

SPONSOR/PROJECT (Number, Name) STATUS 

Nevada City  

# 1 – Gracie Road Intertie Completed. Used an intertie to the Cascade Canal, rather than to Gracie Road infrastructure: 

diversified water sources and increased resilience and management options as a result 

# 2 – South Pine Street Distribution System Improvement Initial design complete. Construction complete by April 1, 2017 

# 3 – Park Avenue Distribution System Improvement Completed. Documented increases in pressure and flow 

# 4 - Prospect Street Distribution System Improvement Completed. Documented increases in pressure and flow 

# 5 - Install Altitude Valves with Integrated SCADA Systems  Installation Completed. Undergoing final testing and calibration, as well as assessing impact 

# 6 - Leak Detection Program Completed. Replacement of 23+ valves, to significantly reduce water loss during system 

repairs by creating water management ‘zones’  

 # 7 - Installation of Water Meters on City Facilities Completed. Increase in water management options, as well as ability to monitor actual water 

usage 

 # 8 - Integrated Water Shortage Contingency, Drought 

Preparedness, and Comprehensive Water Conservation 

Planning Program 

90% complete. Final activities: web content, Water Conservation Ordinance development (if 

directed by City Council), assist with administration of conservation thru improved tracking of 

water use 

Washington County Water District  

# 9 - Maybert Road Transfer and Distribution Line 

Replacement 

Going to bid, in September, 2016. Construction Complete by April 1, 2017 

 # 10 - Relief Hill Road Flow Control Pressure System 

Improvements 

Completed. Documented increase in pressure for all affected residences 

 # 11 - Level-Control Altitude Valve Improvements Going to bid, in September 2016. Installation/construction complete by December 2016 

 # 12 - System-Wide Installation of Water Meters Completed. Documented ability to manage water use under drought conditions, also 

significant leak detection resulted (see #13, below) 

# 13 - Downtown Leak Detection and Repair Completed - in conjunction with meter installation, significant leaks detected and repaired 

# 14 - Comprehensive Water Conservation Planning Program Ongoing – Complete by November 2016 

PCWA  

# 15 - Leak Detection & Repair/Alta/Colfax Ongoing – Complete mid-2017. Already documented ability to detect and repair leaks 

American Rivers  

# 16 - CABY Water Trust Ongoing – Complete December 2017 

Administration  

# 17 - Aggregate Administration Ongoing – Major effort complete Dec 2016, with minor effort thru end of 2017 

 

84



 
 

Page 1 of 4 
 

Project #8 Summary – Integrated Water Shortage Contingency, Drought Preparedness, and 
Comprehensive Water Conservation Planning Program  

 
This Project has three Tasks: 
 

1. Develop a Drought Action Plan for Nevada City (DAP) 
2. Develop a Capital Improvement Plan for Nevada City (CIP) 
3. Develop a Citizen Conservation Action Plan for Nevada City (CAP)  

 
Throughout most of 2014 and 2015, activities associated with this Project were in direct response to the historic drought 
that plagued California.  Nevada City Water Managers and Residents were urged to find ways to conserve water in 
response to two Drought Proclamations and Governor Jerry Brown’s 2015 Executive Order requiring mandatory 
conservation measures and water use reductions.  This Project became an obvious vehicle to assist the City in meeting 
these new requirements while also building in long-term conservation strategies to add resiliency to the City in the face 
of an uncertain future with regard to water supplies and climate. 
 
Task 1. Drought Action Plan: In January 2015, a Draft Drought Action Plan was provided to City staff for review and 
comment. After Emergency Regulations were issued by the State in mid-February, the consulting team reviewed the 
new conservation requirements and made recommendations to the City Manager relative to City response. The 
consulting team made further revisions to and completed the final review draft of the DAP document, and submitted it 
to the City Manager for presentation in April 2015 to the City Council. This document is now being further edited to 
make it more simple and straight forward for implementation by City staff. 
 
Task 2. Capital Improvement Plan: The City Engineer expressed a desire to wait to engage in any more development of 
the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) until Project #5 (Altitude Valves and SCADA System design) is complete. The 
outcome of Project #5 will heavily influence the measures that are available to anticipate and respond to future drought 
conditions. Completion of installation of the SCADA system was done at the end of 2015, with on-going testing and 
tweaking of the system continuing through the 1st-3rd quarters of 2016. Therefore, in the final quarters of 2016, the team 
will again engage City Staff and Engineers to complete the development of the CIP. 
 
Task 3. Citizen Conservation Action Plan: It is widely recognized that drought conditions increase the workload of water 
suppliers, and as the drought situation evolved, it became evident that Nevada City’s staff needed additional technical 
support to absorb the additional work that was required by drought conditions and implementation of DAP measures. 
This was especially true in the area of outreach to customers and the public, an area critical to achieving reduced water 
use. The municipal website, for example, at that time was a static site, with no internal capacity for updating it; as a 
result, there was no central on-line place to refer people for drought and water conservation information. City Staff have 
recently developed a new more flexible web platform and are in the process of populating department-specific pages. 
The drought and water conservation content is currently under review and will soon go live.  
 
The consulting team developed water conservation outreach messaging and educational opportunities for local residents 
during the 2015 mandatory drought restriction period. During these efforts it became apparent that a citizen Conservation 
Action Plan, as originally proposed (i.e., heavy reliance on formal public meetings), would be difficult to implement.  This 
was due to repeated requests for more educational materials, interactive workshops with a specific conservation theme 
(e.g., watering to save tress), rather than continued focus on formal events. In response to this information, the focus of 
this task shifted to one of consistent and diverse public messaging on water conservation as well as provision of targeted 
workshops. 
 
 
 

85



 
 

Page 2 of 4 
 

 

 
Figure 1. Composition of Nevada City’s water customers. Residential (single family homes) customers make up 59% of 
water users while commercial customers account for 17% of water users. 

Residential
59%

Multi Family
10%

Commercial   
17%

Government
11%

Non-Profit
3%

Nevada City Water Use Profile

86



 
 

Page 3 of 4 
 

 

 
Figure 2.  Water use reductions by customer type for the years 2013 vs 2015.  Negative bars indicate LESS water use in 2015 (compared to 2013); positive bars 
indicate MORE water use in 2015 (compared to 2013). The dotted line indicates the 20% conservation target that was set for Nevada City. 

-100

-80

-60

-40

-20

0

20

40

60

80

100

Jan/Feb Mar/Apr May/Jun Jul/Aug Sept/Oct Nov/Dec Total

Nevada City Water Use Reductions (2013 vs 2015)

Residential

Multi Family

Commercial

Government

Non-Profit

Conservation Target 20%

87



 
 

Page 4 of 4 
 

 
Figure 3. Nevada City water use by billing period for Residential Customers (Top Graph) and Commercial Customers 
(Bottom Graph) for 2013 (solid bar), 2015 (checked bars) and for available 2016 data (open bars). 

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

4500

Jan/Feb Mar/Apr May/Jun Jul/Aug Sept/Oct Nov/Dec

To
ta

l G
al

lo
n

s 
o

f 
W

at
er

Nevada City Residential Water Use

2013 Water Use 2015 Water Use 2016 Water Use

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

4500

Jan/Feb Mar/Apr May/Jun Jul/Aug Sept/Oct Nov/Dec

To
ta

l G
al

lo
n

s 
o

f 
W

at
er

Nevada City Commercial Water Use

2013 Water Use 2015 Water Use 2016 Water Use

88



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL   City of Nevada City 

        317 Broad Street 
        Nevada City CA 95959 
        www.nevadacityca.gov 

July 27, 2016 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:  Nevada City Sidewalk Cost-Sharing Program Pilot Project 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Review and approve implementation of Nevada City 
Sidewalk Cost-Sharing Program Pilot Project.  
 
CONTACT:  Bryan McAlister, City Engineer 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  California state law and the City’s municipal 
code require property owners to maintain and repair sidewalks. The maintenance 
and management demands involve a significant outlay of resources which often 
delays needed repairs.  
 
Some communities have established cost-sharing programs to mitigate the 
expense burden for property owners to comply with state and local code 
stipulations. These types of programs typically accelerate improvements and 
improve the walkability of the City, resulting in a betterment of the community.  
 
The City’s NCForward Economic Plan includes an objective to launch a sidewalk 
cost-share initiative in 2016 leveraging private resources. This component of the 
Plan is to enhance the City’s public infrastructure and position the City for 
business investment by ensuring the community’s needs are met. 
 
Staff has developed a pilot project to assist property owners seeking to repair 
displaced and damaged sidewalks. The program provides reimbursement up to 
50% of improvement costs, ensures public resources are utilized in an efficient 
manner, and is designed to be customer-friendly. Applicants will follow a three-
step process to participate: 
 

    Step 1:  Complete and submit a one-page application. 

    Step 2:  City Engineer and/or Public Works staff will review the 
sidewalk repair location and confirm eligibility. 

Step 3:  Applicant will obtain three written quotes and secure 
approval from the City Engineer based on the lowest 
responsible bid. Following completion of the project, the 
applicant will submit documentation for reimbursement.  

 

89

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


The program is recommended as pilot project to evaluate community 
participation and interest in the program. Staff recommends allocating $20,000 of 
Measure S FY 2016/17 funding to launch the program (Measure S provides 
approximately $500,000 annually for street/sidewalk improvements). This is 
anticipated to contribute an additional $20,000 of private investment in sidewalk 
repairs locally over the next 12 months. Following completion of the pilot project, 
the City Engineer will report on the number of projects completed and 
recommend any adjustments to the program.  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS:  Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  The $20,000 pilot project can be implemented within the 
approved FY 2016/17 Measure S budget resources.  
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 

 Nevada City Sidewalk Cost-Sharing Program Pilot Project 

90



 
 
City of Nevada City 
SIDEWALK COST-SHARING PROGRAM 
 
 
 

1) PURPOSE 

The primary purpose of the Sidewalk Cost-Sharing Program is to assist property owners 
in their repair of displaced and damaged sidewalks by providing partial reimbursement 
of costs. 

 
2) PROJECT ELIGIBILITY AND REIMBURSEMENT 

Projects located within City Street right-of-way that include missing, damaged or displaced 
sidewalk are eligible to apply for the Sidewalk Cost-Sharing Program. Property owners 
may be reimbursed up to 50% of the overall cost of the improvements. 

Sidewalk Cost-Sharing Program Applications will be processed on a first come first 
served basis until funds allocated for the fiscal year have been exhausted. 

 
3) OUTLINE OF STEPS 

STEP 1: 

 Complete and submit a Sidewalk Cost-Sharing Program Application 
(attached).   Provide an improvement plan identifying those improvements you 
propose to complete as well as any tree removal (separate permit required), curb 
and gutter replacement, retaining wall repair, driveway re-grading, etc. 

STEP 2: 

 The City Engineer and/or Public Works staff will review the sidewalk repair 
location.    If the project location is eligible and funds are available, the City will 
notify the applicant to proceed with solicitation of quotes for pricing.   

STEP 3: 

 The applicant shall obtain three written quotes and shall notify the City 
Engineer of the expected cost based on the lowest responsible bid. 

 The City Engineer shall complete the City’s portion of the Sidewalk Cost-Sharing 
Program Application form. A copy of the completed Sidewalk Cost-Sharing 
Program Application will be returned to the applicant. 

 Submit all invoices applicable for reimbursement per the Sidewalk Cost- Sharing 
Program Application.   Reimbursement generally takes three weeks to process. 

 

If you have questions about the program, please call the            
City Engineer at (530) 265-2496 x126. 

 

 91



 

 
City of Nevada City 
SIDEWALK COST-SHARING APPLICATION 
 
 
 

Property Address:_____________________________________________ 

Owner Name:________________________________________________ 

Phone #:____________________________________________________ 

 

Owner/ Applicant Signature_____________________________________ 

Date:_______________________________________________________ 

 

 

Identify all improvements you propose to complete (including incidental work such as curb 
and gutter replacement, retaining wall repair, railing, driveway re-grading, etc.) 

Description of work:______________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________ 

 

Sketch of work: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AUTHORIZATION TO PROCEED 

Estimated Reimbursement Cost _____________________________________________ 

 

 Signature (City approval) __________________________________________________ 

 Print name/ title:_________________________________________________________  

 Date__________________________________________________________________ 

 

 
92



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL 
         City of Nevada City 

         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA  95959 

July 27, 2016       www.nevadacityca.gov 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

TITLE:  City Council Appointments for Fiscal Year 2016-2017 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Review and consider appointment of City Council Members and 
members of the public to City and external Boards, Committees and Commissions for 
Fiscal Year 2016-2017. 
 
CONTACT:  Mark Prestwich, City Manager 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  City Council Members and public appointees 
regularly participate as members of various boards, committees and commissions. A 
summary of current external and City boards, committees and commissions is provided 
below. Prior year appointments are included for reference purposes.  
 

EXTERNAL ORGANIZATIONS 
 

 2015/16 Appointee 2015/16 Alternate Appointed by 

LAFCo Robert Bergman Duane Strawser City Council 

NCTC/Airport 
Commission/Nevada 
County Transit 

Terri Andersen Duane Strawser City Council 

Solid Waste & 
Hazardous Waste 
Committee 

Duane Strawser Evans Phelps City Council 

Economic Resource 
Council 

Robert Bergman Duane Strawser City Council 

City Selection 
Committee 

Mayor Mayor Pro Tem N/A 

 
CITY COMMISSIONS/COMMITTEES 

 
 2015/16 

Appointee/Member 
2015/16 Alternate Appointed by 

Planning Commission Brad Croul 
Pamela Meek 
John Parent 
Stewart Lauters 
Dan Thiem 

N/A City Council Members 
appoint a Planning 
Commissioner unless 
previously selected 

Measure S Committee Patti Foster 
Mike Barbar 
Rod Brown 
Conley Weaver 
Niel Locke 

N/A City Council 

 

 
 

93

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS:  Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
ATTACHMENT:   

 
 Commission/Committee Description & Purpose 

94



COMMISSION/COMMITTEE DESCRIPTION & PURPOSE 
 

 
Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo). Created by the California Legislature in 1963 with 
the duties to oversee any boundary changes of City boundaries and special districts (Fire, NID, etc). 
The LAFCo office is located at the Nevada County Government Center. LAFCo members also review 
and adopt Nevada City’s Sphere of Influence Plan which is required to be updated every five years (last 
adopted in 2008). This Sphere of Influence Plan is a requirement of State law and ensures that any 
changes in city boundaries occur in a logical manner and that city services are available to serve the 
area. 
Meets:  Third Thursday every other month 
Term Limits:  Serve until replaced 
 
Nevada County Transportation Commission (NCTC). The Mission of the NCTC is to plan, 
communicate, and coordinate with citizens and decision makers of Nevada County, Grass Valley, 
Nevada City, Truckee and Caltrans to create a balanced regional system. This includes administration 
of regional, state, and federal funding for projects related to roadways, bridges, public transportation 
services, railways, airports, bicycle facilities, and pedestrian amenities. In development these 
transportation solutions, the NCTC initiates design concepts, engineering feasibility studies, 
environmental studies, and proposes funding sources to construct transportation improvements. Once 
these tasks are completed, projects are turned over to Caltrans or to a local jurisdiction for construction. 
Meets:  Third Wednesday every other month 
Term Limits:  Serve until replaced 
 
Nevada County Airport Commission. The Nevada County Airport’s Mission is to develop and deliver 
safe and efficient aviation facilities for Nevada County residents, businesses, visitors, and the CDF fire 
suppression base, through a commitment to quality services, professional competence and fiscal 
responsibility. The Nevada County Airport Commission reviews and recommends action on Airport 
policy matters, operations, and development to the Board of Supervisors. 
Meets:  Only when necessary for Airport Land Use 
Term Limits:  Serve until replaced 
 
Nevada County Transit Services Commission. The Transit Services Division of the Department of 
Transportation and Sanitation is responsible for the administration and delivery of public transit and 
paratransit services, primarily in western Nevada County. The Transit Services Division operates the 
Gold Country Stage, a fixed rote bus system serving western Nevada County, and administers a 
contract for the provision of specialized paratransit services for persons with disabilities. Bot services 
are operated pursuant to a joint powers agreement executed by Nevada County and the Cities of Grass 
Valley and Nevada City. 
Meets:  Third Wednesday of every other month at 8:15 a.m. and held at Grass Valley City Hall, 
Nevada City, City Hall, Nevada County Eric Rood Center, Truckee Town Hall. 
Term Limits:  Serve until replaced 
 
Solid & Hazardous Waste Commission (Nevada County). This Commission assists the County in 
the management of solid and hazardous waste, and whose participation, review, and recommendation 
will be required before the County of Nevada may take any final action on solid and hazardous waste 
matters. The Commission will assist in the development of a comprehensive log-range plan for the 
disposal and recycling of solid and hazardous waste within the County, and the Management of the 
County’s solid waste operations, including all of the financial matters pertaining thereto. 
Meets: Second Thursday, of even months at 1:30 p.m. in the Empire Room of the Rood Admin Center 
Term Limits:  Serve until replaced 
 
Nevada County Economic Resource Council. The Nevada Economic Resource Council (NCERC) is 
dedicated and positioned to assist in business attraction, creation and retention. NCERC collaborates 
with community leaders in business, government, chambers of commerce and business associations.  
Meets:  First Thursday of each month at 7:30 a.m. at the Green Screen Institute in Nevada City.. 
Term Limits:  Serve until replaced 

95



City Selection Committee.  Powers and Duties of the City Selection Committee pursuant to Sections 
50270 et seq. of the California Government Code. In any county in which two or more cities are 
incorporated there is hereby created a city selection committee the purpose of which shall be to appoint 
city representatives to boards, commissions, and agencies as required by law. The current list of boards, 
committees/commissions, and agencies which the City Selection Committee appoints representatives 
to are: LAFCO, RAN, Supplemental Law Enforcement Oversight Committee, Truckee Tahoe Airport 
Land Use Commission, and Nevada County Airport Land Use Commission. The membership of each 
such city selection committee shall consist of the mayor of each city within the county. The Clerk of the 
Board of Supervisors, County of Nevada serves as the permanent Secretary and Recording Officer of 
the Committee. All City Representatives appointed by the Committee are responsible for exercising the 
duties of their positions with diligence, integrity, and the highest regard for the public trust and interest 
of the citizens of the cities within Grass Valley, Nevada City and Truckee.   
Meets: Third Monday in July annually (if there’s business to transact) 
Term Limits:  Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem 
 
Planning Commission. The Planning Commission is a citizen group appointed by the City Council. 
They are tasked with taking action on discretionary land use proposals and architectural review 
applications. They also make recommendations on land use policy changes and on design and land 
use aspects of City projects. 
Meets: Third Thursday of each month starting at 1:30 p.m. in the City Council Chambers. 
Term Limits:  Serve until replaced. 
 
Measure S Committee. The Measure S Committee’s responsibility is to oversee the paving projects 
including tracking of finances, verifying streets to be paved, and ensuring that all of the criteria of the 
public proposition are followed. 
Meets:  Twice Year 
Term Limits:  Serve until replaced 
 

 

96


	1-REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 07.27.2016.pdf
	3A-1 Fire Activity Report - June 2016
	3A-2 Fire Incident Responses - June 2016
	3B-1 Council SR JPA Amendment
	3B-2 JPA Amendment California HERO Program 9 22 15
	3B-3 WRCOG JPA Agreement- as amended 6-4-13
	3C-1 stfrpt LUC Stiles Mill
	3C-2 LUC Stiles Mill
	3C-3 2016-xx LUC with DTSC
	3D-1 SR 7-27-16 Proposition 84 Grant Agreement Amendment #2
	3D-2 CABY 4600009716 Amendment 2 (unexecuted) - Water Trust
	3D-3 CABY Project Status Listing
	4A-Minutes 07.06.2016.Draft
	4B-Minutes 07.13.2016.Draft
	5A-1 SR 7-27-16 Surplus Property Disposition Policy
	5A-2 Reso - Surplus Property Disposition Policy
	5A-3 Nevada City Surplus Property Policy and Procedure
	6A-1 CC SR - Appeal 7-27-2016
	6A-2 Attachment 1 - Subcomittee preferred design concept
	6A-3 Attachment 2 - Photo & Sanborn exhibit
	6A-4 Attachment 3 - Applicant Proposal
	7A-1 Water Conservation Projects
	7A-2 Drought Plan Summary
	8A-1 Sidewalk Cost-Share Program Pilot Project
	8A-2 Nevada City Sidewalk Cost Share Program
	8B-1-City Council Appointments
	8B-2-Committee-Commission Descriptions



